
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

 

                      

                                                                               

 

   
AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, February 14, 2012 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

              
 9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

� February 7, 2012 
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
 
Animal Control 
a.   Contract with Sign Crafters Inc. dba Signs Now 
Central Services 
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0502-101, Dept. 000 
c. Purchase Authorization for Microsoft Software for Upgrading County Network 
Fairgrounds 
d.    Interagency Agreement K838 w/Washington State Department of Agriculture 
e. Lease Agreement w/Gold Wing Road Riders  
GIS 
f.    Agreement w/City of West Richland for Orthophotography for 2012 
Planning 
g. Agreement w/St of WA Dept of Ecology for Comprehensive Shoreline Master Program 

Update 
Public Works 
h.    Public Hearing Authorization for Zayo Group LLC Franchise 
Sheriff 
i. Contract Amendment w/Dr. Brooks Watson II MD-MBA  

 
9:05 AM Scheduled Business:   

 
North Red Mountain Groundwater Issues – T Tebb 
 
Prosser Economic Development Update – D Heintz 

 
   Unscheduled Visitors  
   Board Assignment Update  

Leo Bowman 
District 1 
Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator

CurrentUser
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight

CurrentUser
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
 
Present: Chairman James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small 
  Commissioner Leo Bowman  
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; 
County Engineer Malcolm Bowie; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Clerk Josie 
Delvin; Auditor Brenda Chilton; Teri Holmes, Central Services; DPA Ryan Brown; Larry 
Moser; DPA Ryan Lukson (via videoconference); Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of January 31, 2012 were approved.   
 
Review Agenda 
 
Chairman Beaver requested item “o” (Interlocal Agreement with Franklin County for 
Engineering Services) be added to the consent agenda. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “m” 
adding “o”.  Commissioner Bowman seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Central Services 

a. Agreement w/Smarsh, Inc. for Archiving Services  
Commissioners   

b. Appointment of N Martin to the Columbia Irrigation District Board of Directors    
Facilities 

c. Contract w/DNR Systems, Inc. for OPTO22 Control System   
Fairgrounds 

d. Authorization to Pay Avenue Law Office for Workshop Cancellation Fee 



 - 2 - 

Human Services 
e. Agreement, #2012-HHAA-BFCAC, w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee 
f. Support of Services to Meet the Goals of Reducing Homelessness Through the Benton 

County Homeless Housing and Assistance Program 
g. Authorization for the Sale or Transfer of Property from Richland Housing Authority to 

Lourdes Counseling Center 
Juvenile 

h. Agreement, #1263-43048, w/St of WA DSHS, Juvenile Rehabilitation Administration   
i. 2012 Monthly Payment for Operations and Facilities Budget 

Office of Public Defense 
j. Interlocal Agreement w/WA State Office of Public Defense for Use of Grant Funding 

Public Works 
k. Purchase Authorization for ER&R Tire Changer from Myers Tire Supply 
l. Establishing New Bonding Procedures; Rescinding Resolution 81-454 
m. Master Bridge Work Agreement w/WA State Department of Transportation 
n. Approval of ER&R Equipment Rental Rates Schedule for 2012    
o. Interlocal Agreement with Franklin County for Engineering Services 

 
The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:05 a.m.  
 
Public Hearing – Dangerous Dog Ordinance Amendment  
 
DPA Ryan Lukson (via videoconference) provided an amendment to the dangerous dog 
ordinance.  He said the reason for the amendment was to change some language regarding the 
appeal process for a dangerous dog proclamation that was ruled unconstitutional in a court case 
and some minor cleanup language.   
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed.  
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Bowman moved to approve the ordinance amendment relating to 
potentially dangerous dogs and dangerous dogs, amending Ordinance 34 and Ordinance 463.    
Commissioner Small seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Bowman reported on his attendance at the WSAC Conference and provided a 
multitude of information regarding status on legislative bills, including, but not limited to: land 
use (UGA), natural resources, SEPA streamlining, Legislative Steering Committee high priority 
bills, criminal justice, fee increases, income generating potential for counties, the public works 
fund, and federal bills.   
 
Commissioner Small said he attended the Cattlemen’s Association dinner and received a lot of 
appreciation regarding the County opting into the voluntary stewardship program.  He again 
thanked Mr. Shuttleworth for his work on that program.   
 



 - 3 - 

Chairman Beaver reported on his attendance at the Visitor & Convention Bureau and TRIDEC 
meetings and said the Clean Air Authority meeting was cancelled.   
 
Claim for Damages 
 
CC 2012-04: Received February 3, 2012 from Jeffrey Lee Knight 
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 1/30/2012 
Warrant #: 50619 
Total all funds: $12,771.82 
 
Check Date:  2/3/2012 
Warrant #: 233592-233700 
Direct Deposit #: 71076-71672 
Total all funds: $2,137,754.02 
 
Check Date:  2/3/2012 
Warrant #: 51124-51148 
Taxes #: 10112021-10112023 
Total all funds: $1,945,276.86 
 
Check Date: 2/3/2012 
Warrant #: 50950-51123 
Total all funds: $559,555.08 
 
Check Date: 2/3/2012 
Warrant #: 50625-50941 
Total all funds: $11,347.20 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 
Resolutions 
 
2012-079: Agreement w/Smarsh, Inc. for Archiving Services  
2012-080: Appointment of N Martin to the Columbia Irrigation District Board of Directors    
2012-081: Contract w/DNR Systems, Inc. for OPTO22 Control System   
2012-082: Authorization to Pay Avenue Law Office for Workshop Cancellation Fee 
2012-083: Agreement, #2012-HHAA-BFCAC, w/Benton Franklin Community Action 

Committee 
2012-084: Support of Services to Meet the Goals of Reducing Homelessness Through the 

Benton County Homeless Housing and Assistance Program 
2012-085: Authorization for the Sale or Transfer of Property from Richland Housing 

Authority to Lourdes Counseling Center 



 - 4 - 

2012-086: Agreement, #1263-43048, w/St of WA DSHS, Juvenile Rehabilitation 
Administration   

2012-087: 2012 Monthly Payment for Operations and Facilities Budget 
2012-088: Interlocal Agreement w/WA State Office of Public Defense for Use of Grant 

Funding 
2012-089: Purchase Authorization for ER&R Tire Changer from Myers Tire Supply 
2012-090: Establishing New Bonding Procedures; Rescinding Resolution 81-454 
2012-091: Master Bridge Work Agreement w/WA State Department of Transportation 
2012-092: Approval of ER&R Equipment Rental Rates Schedule for 2012    
2012-093: Interlocal Agreement with Franklin County for Engineering Services 
2012-094: Adoption of Ordinance 520 Relating to Potentially Dangerous and Dangerous 

Dogs 
 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:26 
a.m.   
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 2-14-12        
Subject: Contract with 

Signs Now 
Prepared by:       K. Mercer  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __x___ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
Sheriff Keane and I discussed the idea about replacing the Animal Control vehicle decals from “Benton 
County Sheriff Animal Control” to “Benton County Animal Control.” We feel that it is in the best interest to 
replace the decals so there is no misunderstanding by the public.  A personal service contract is required in 
order to remove and replace the decals. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the personal service contract with Sign Crafters, Inc. dba Signs Now for “as needed” custom 
vehicle decals, signs, banners, and other miscellaneous services.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Amount not to exceed $10,000 to be paid from any department that utilizes the contract. Rates will be 
determined at the time services are needed in a form of a quote. Animal Control vehicle decal removal and 
installation is approximately $2,500 plus tax (for both vehicles) to be paid out of Current Expense (0000-101) 
Department 137. No supplement required.  
 
MOTION 
 
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
a. Contract with Sign Crafters Inc. dba Signs Now







CurrentUser
Text Box
b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0502-101, Dept. 000







CurrentUser
Text Box
c. Purchase Authorization for Microsoft Software for Upgrading County Network





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 2-14-12        
Subject: Interagency 

Agreement K838 
Prepared by:       K. Mercer  
Reviewed by:      LSK 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __x___ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
 
On September 28, 2011, the Benton County Fairgrounds submitted an application with the Washington 
State Department of Agriculture Special Assistance Grant Funds for funding a capital improvement project 
of removing and replacing thirty six (36) above ground electrical pedestals with traffic rated vaulted 
underground boxes. On December 12, 2011, the Fairgrounds received notice that the Washington State 
Department of Agriculture intended to award Benton County Fairgrounds $30,000 for the capital 
improvement project specified above. The Deputy County Administrator and the Prosecuting Attorney’s 
Office reviewed the proposed Interagency Agreement K838 and after a few minor changes, Interagency 
Agreement K838 has been approved. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the Chairman to sign Interagency Agreement K838. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The Fairgrounds Improvement Fund (0123-101) shall be reimbursed up to $30,000 for the electrical 
pedestal project. No supplement required.  
 
MOTION 
 
 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
d. Interagency Agreement K838 w/Washington State Department of Agriculture



Original: File – Commissioners 
cc: Facilities; Fairgrounds; Auditor; R. Ozuna;  

K. Mercer  

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD TO SIGN THE 
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT NUMBER K838 BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
AND THE WASHINGTON STATE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds would like to participate in the 2012 State of 
Washington Department of Agriculture Special Assistance Grant Program to fund a capital 
improvement project of removing and replacing thirty six (36) above ground electrical pedestals with 
traffic rated vaulted underground boxes; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Fairgrounds was notified that the Washington State Department of 
Agriculture intends to award the Benton County Fairgrounds $30,000 for the project specified above; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Interagency Agreement Number K838 must be executed in order to utilize the grant 
funding; NOW, THEREFORE, 
  
BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the Interagency Agreement Number K838 
between Benton County, Washington and the Washington State Department of Agriculture; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the attached agreement commences the date of the last 
signature of the contracting parties and terminates July 31, 2013.  
 
Dated this  _______________ day of _____________, 2012. 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 
 





CurrentUser
Text Box
e. Lease Agreement w/Gold Wing Road Riders









 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 2-14-12        
Subject: Agreement with 

City of West 
Richland 

Prepared by:       M. Phillips  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __x__ 
Pass Resolution  __x__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            

_x___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION 
 
In order to keep up with growth and changes to its landbase, infrastructure, and associated public services, it 
is essential that Benton County continually maintains a current GIS base and periodically updates its digital 
orthophotography. Since the digital orthophotography has not been updated since 2008, the Benton County 
GIS Department, along with the Franklin County Public Works Department, solicited proposals for 2012 color 
digital orthophotography for both counties and for the Hanford Federal Reservation, as well as high-
resolution orthophotography for the cities of Kennewick, Richland, West Richland, and Pasco. By combining 
resources in a joint project such as this, participants will be able to acquire high quality color digital 
orthophotography at a substantially reduced rate from that which would be incurred if participants were to 
contract separately. 
 
Per the terms of this Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement, West Richland shall reimburse Benton 
County for the cost of the 4-inch or better pixel resolution color digital orthophotography within its urban 
growth areas in the amount not to exceed a sum of Five Thousand Five Hundred and Twelve dollars 
($5,512). 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Pass the resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Project expenses up to $5,512.00 plus WSST, if applicable, to be reimbursed by the City of West Richland 
back to Current Expense (0000-101). No supplement required. 
 
MOTION 
 

CurrentUser
Text Box
f. Agreement w/City of West Richland for Orthophotography for 2012



  1 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CITY OF WEST RICHLAND FOR HIGH RESOLUTION COLOR DIGITAL ORTHOPHOTOGRAPHY 
FOR 2012 FOR THE AREA WITHIN THE CITY OF WEST RICHLAND’S URBAN GROWTH 
BOUNDARY.  
 
 
WHEREAS, per the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 of the 
Revised Code of Washington provides for interlocal cooperation between governmental agencies; and  
 
WHEREAS, in order to keep up with growth and the associated public services, Benton County 
continually updates its GIS base and periodically updates its digital orthophotography base; and  
 
WHEREAS, Benton County will be updating its digital orthophotography base in 2012; and  
 
WHEREAS, both Benton County and the City of West Richland have the capability to independently 
acquire and/or produce 2012 ortho-imagery, but if each acted independently, the results would involve 
significant redundancies and increased costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of West Richland has requested that Benton County provide and deliver to them 4-
inch or better pixel resolution ortho-imagery within the city’s urban growth area; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of West Richland has agreed to pay Benton County the amount of the cost of the 
delivery of the 4-inch or better pixel resolution ortho-imagery within the city’s urban growth area, in an 
amount not to exceed a sum of Five Thousand Five Hundred and Twelve dollars ($5,512); NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
agree to approve this Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement with the City of West Richland; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Agreement attached hereto; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the term of the attached contract commences upon execution by both 
parties and shall expire upon the completion of the project. 
 
 
 
 
Dated this  __________________ day of _____________, 2012. 
 
 

 ___________________________                   
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________                
 Member 

 
 

 __________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                     Clerk of the Board 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is between Benton County, a political subdivision of the State of 
Washington, and the City of West Richland, a municipal corporation. 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, as amended, and codified in Chapter 39.34 
of the Revised Code of Washington provides for interlocal cooperation between 
governmental agencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this agreement is to cooperatively undertake and complete 
an aerial photography and orthophoto mapping project of BENTON COUNTY, including 
the areas lying within the CITY OF WEST RICHLAND; and 
 
WHEREAS, this project will benefit both, because the COUNTY has a need to update 
its ortho-imagery of the County in 2012, and the CITY OF WEST RICHLAND has a 
need to update its ortho-imagery of those areas lying within the limits of the West 
Richland Urban Growth Boundary in 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties have the capability to independently acquire and/or produce 
2012 ortho-imagery, but if each acted independently, the results would involve 
significant redundancies and increased costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, a major goal of this Agreement is to reduce and/or eliminate duplication 
and save governmental costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY requires ortho-imagery to be delivered with 12-inch pixel 
resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY OF WEST RICHLAND has requested that the COUNTY provide 
and deliver to them the ortho-imagery of the West Richland Urban Growth Boundary 
with 4-inch or better pixel resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY will be entering into a personal services contract with 
AEROQUEST OPTIMAL, INC., for the purpose of undertaking and completing an aerial 
photography and orthophoto mapping project of Benton County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY is willing to include, as part of the contract to be entered with 
AEROQUEST OPTIMAL, INC., all provisions necessary to deliver ortho-imagery of the 
areas lying within the West Richland Urban Growth Boundary to the CITY OF WEST 
RICHLAND at the requested 4-inch or better pixel resolution; and 



WHEREAS, the CITY OF WEST RICHLAND has agreed to pay the COUNTY the 
amount of the cost of the delivery of ortho-imagery with 4-inch or better pixel resolution; 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The COUNTY shall provide all data and resources necessary for AEROQUEST 
OPTIMAL, INC., to complete the work as outlined in the personal services 
contract to be entered with AEROQUEST OPTIMAL, INC., for the purpose of 
undertaking and completing an aerial photography and orthophoto mapping 
project of Benton County. 

 
2. The COUNTY shall provide all preliminary data received from AEROQUEST 

OPTIMAL, INC., for the West Richland Urban Growth Boundary to the CITY OF 
WEST RICHLAND for their review and comment. 

 
3. The COUNTY shall deliver to the CITY OF WEST RICHLAND a copy of all 

project deliverables across the entire extent of the project area, including both 
project documentation and project data, as described in the personal services 
contract to be entered with AEROQUEST OPTIMAL, INC. 

 
4. The CITY OF WEST RICHLAND shall reimburse the COUNTY in the amount of 

the cost of the delivery of ortho-imagery with 4-inch or better pixel resolution for 
the area described in Exhibit A (Attached).  The amount to be reimbursed by the 
CITY OF WEST RICHLAND to the COUNTY shall not exceed a sum of Five 
Thousand Five Hundred and Twelve dollars ($5,512). 

 
5. The COUNTY shall submit an invoice to the CITY OF WEST RICHLAND for 

reimbursement to the COUNTY upon the successful delivery of the project 
documentation and project data. 





EXHIBIT A

 WEST RICHLAND
URBAN

PROJECT AREA

0.0 0.5 1.0 1.5 2.0

Miles

Legend

4-inch Pixel Resolution Project Area

City Limits

County Boundary

Hanford Federal Reservation

Urban Growth Area

Highway or Interstate

River

BENTON
COUNTY

GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION

SYSTEMS
DEPARTMENT

Benton County does not warrant, guarantee, or accept liability for accuracy, precision or 
completeness of any information shown hereon or for any inferences made therefrom.  Any 
use made of this information is solely at the risk of the user.  Benton County makes no 
warranty, expressed or implied, and any oral or written statement by any employee of Benton 
County or agents thereof to the contrary is void and ultra vires.  The information shown herein 
is a product of the Benton County Geographic Information Systems, and is prepared for 
presentation purposes only. 



 1

AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE:  February 14, 2012 
SUBJECT:  Shoreline Master Program 
(SMP) Grant Agreement 
MEMO DATE: February 6, 2011 
Prepared By: Susan M. Walker 
Reviewed By: Michael Shuttleworth 

TYPE OF ACTION 

NEEDED 

Execute Contract X 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  
Other    

 

Consent Agenda X 
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

To improve and protect the state shoreline areas, Washington State Legislature passed the 
Shoreline Management Act in 1971(RCW 90.58) that was later adopted in 1972 by 
referendum vote.  There are three basic policy areas of "The Act": shoreline use, 
environmental protection, and public access.  The Act emphasizes accommodation of 
appropriate uses that require a shoreline location, protection of shoreline environmental 
resources and protection of the public's right to access and use the shorelines (RCW 
90.58.020). 
 
Benton County's current Shoreline Master Program (SMP) was adopted on April 25, 1974, 
and has not been updated since that time.  The state legislature directed Ecology in 1995 
to update the guidelines (state standards), which had not been revised since 1972 and did 
not account for advancements in science and shoreline management practices, nor the 
recent passage of Washington’s Growth Management Act.  After much debate and a 
negotiated settlement between business interests, ports, environmental groups, shoreline 
user groups, cities, counties, DOE, and the courts, the final version (WAC 173-26) was 
adopted in December of 2003 and became effective January 17, 2004. 
 
SUMMARY 

Under state law, Washington's 39 counties and more than 200 cities that have shoreline 
areas covered under the Shoreline Management Act must develop individual, locally tailored 
programs to guide construction and development in regulated shoreline areas.  Shoreline 
master programs help counties and cities avoid or lessen environmental damage as 
shoreline areas are developed.  Benton County is required by RCW 90.58.080 (2)(a)(v), to 
review, update, and adopt its shoreline master program in accordance with the provisions 
of the Shoreline Management Act (RCW 90.58) and the Shoreline Master Program 
Guidelines (WAC 173-26), on or before December 2013. 
 
State law established a cooperative relationship between local governments and the 
Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE).  Benton County and the Department of 
Ecology share joint authority and responsibility for the administration of the Benton County 
SMP.  The DOE administers SMP guidelines (WAC 173-26) and provides technical 
assistance to local governments and funding in the form of grants. 
 
The Act requires the state to provide "reasonable and adequate" funding for SMP updates. 
The amount of funding is based on a number of factors including, but not limited to: miles 
of shoreline; number and complexity of kinds of shoreline (streams and rivers); population; 

CurrentUser
Text Box
g. Agreement w/St of WA Dept of Ecology for Comprehensive Shoreline Master Program Update



 2

and growth rate. These shorelines include rivers and streams with flow over 20 cubic feet 
per second mean annual flow.  The County has approximately 411 miles of shoreline 
(measured in single banks). The shoreline jurisdiction extends 200 feet landward of these 
waters and includes associated wetlands and floodplains. 
 
STAFF REVIEW AND ANALYSIS: 

Benton County has secured grant funding from the DOE in the amount of $200,000 for 
years 1 & 2, effective July 1, 2011; with an additional $50,000 anticipated in year 3 to be 
appropriated in the 2013-15 Biennium, to assist the County in completion of its Shoreline 
Master Program update. The attached SMA Grant Agreement No. G21200022 between the 
State of Washington Department of Ecology and Benton County describes the scope of 
work, tasks, activities and timeline for the completion of the County's Shoreline 
Management Program Update which meets the procedural and substantive requirements, 
rules, and guidelines of the SMA.  The effective date of the agreement (contract) is July 1, 
2011 to June 30, 2014. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommendation of Planning Staff is that the Board of County Commissioners enter into 
contract with the Department of Ecology to receive the County's allotted grant funds to 
complete the County's Shoreline Master Program update. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
This is a non-match grant, so the County does not have to provide funds, however, 
planning staff time will be needed.  An Expenditure Budget for the SMP Update process is 
shown on page 16 of the attached contract.  Grant funds are awarded on a reimbursable 
basis, so a supplement to the Planning Department budget will be required.  The County 
initially pays project costs as they incur.  Invoicing to Ecology is usually by quarter, but not 
more often than once a month. 
 
MOTION  
A motion to approve the attached agreement to enter into contract with the Department of 
Ecology and authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign on behalf of the Board of 
Commissioners. 



RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON IN THE 
MATTER OF COUNTY PLANNING RE: Shoreline Management Act (SMA), Agreement No. 
G1200022, entering into contract with Washington State Department of Ecology to secure grant 
funding necessary to complete review and update of Benton County's Comprehensive Shoreline 
Master Program. 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature passed the Shoreline Management Act in 1971 
(RCW 90.58), and the Act was adopted by referendum vote in 1972; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County's current Shoreline Master Program (SMP) was adopted on April 25, 
1974, and has not been updated since that time; and, 
 
WHEREAS, in December 2003, the Department of Ecology adopted new, revised Shoreline 
Master Program Guidelines (WAC 173-26); and, 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County and the Department of Ecology share joint authority and 
responsibility for the administration of the Benton County SMP; and, 
 
WHEREAS, RCW 90.58.080 (2)(a)(v), requires Benton County to review, update, and adopt its 
shoreline master program in accordance with the provisions of the Shoreline Management Act 
(RCW 90.58) and the Shoreline Master Program Guidelines (WAC 173-26), on or before 
December, 2013; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Department of Ecology has allocated grant funding for Benton County in the 
amount of $200,000 dollars for years 1 & 2, effective July 1, 2011; and the additional funding of 
$50,000 for year 3 is projected for appropriation in the 2013-15 Biennium, to assist the County 
in completion of its Shoreline Master Program Update; NOW THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that upon entering into contract with the Washington State Department of 
Ecology, Benton County will receive the allocated state grant funding necessary to complete the 
review and update of the County's Shoreline Management Plan; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the SMA 
Agreement No. G1200022 contract attached hereto; and, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the contract shall fully executed upon signature of both parties. 
 
Dated this   day of     , 2012. 
 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Member 
 
 ___________________________________ 
 Member  
 Constituting the Board of County 
 Commissioners of Benton County 
 Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
Clerk of the Board  Planning/smw  
 cc:  Prosecuting Attorney's Office 



  

Page 1 of 28 

 

SMA Grant Agreement No. G1200022 

between the 

State of Washington Department of Ecology  

and 

Benton County 

Project:  Comprehensive Shoreline Master Program Update 
 

THIS is a binding agreement entered into by and between the State of Washington, Department of 
Ecology, (PO Box 47600, Olympia, Washington, 98504-7600) hereinafter referred to as the 
"DEPARTMENT" or as "ECOLOGY" and Benton County, hereinafter referred to as the "RECIPIENT" 
to carry out activities described herein, and as authorized by the Washington State Legislature under 
Chapter 173-26 of the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) for shoreline implementation. 
 
 Name of  RECIPIENT:  Benton County 

 Department:  Planning Department 
  Address:  P O Box 910 
    Prosser, WA. 99350 

   Project Manager for RECIPIENT:  Susan M. Walker  
  Telephone Number:  509-786-5612  
 E-mail address:  susan.walker@co.benton.wa.us  
 
 Fiscal Contact for RECIPIENT:  Michael Shuttleworth 
 Telephone Number:  509-786-5612  
 E-mail Address:  mike.shuttleworth@co.benton.wa.us  
 
 Payee on Warrant:  Benton County 
    P.O. Box 910 
    Prosser, WA. 99350 
 
 Project Officer for ECOLOGY:  Clynda Case 
   SEA Program, Central Regional Office 
   Washington State Department of Ecology 
    15 W. Yakima Ave, Ste. 200 
   Yakima, WA 98902 
 Telephone Number:  509-457-7125 
 E-mail address:  Clynda.Case@ecy.wa.gov 
 
The source of funds provided by ECOLOGY are from the 2011-13 Washington State Legislature 
under Engrossed Substitute House Bill 1087, §302 for Shoreline Implementation and/or the Local 
Toxics Control Account.*  
 Maximum Grant Amount, Fiscal Years 1 and 2 (7/1/11-6/30/13): $     200,000  
 Maximum Grant Amount, Fiscal Year 3 (7/1/13– 6/30/14):   $       50,000  
                                 Total: $     250,000  
   
State Maximum Cost Share Rate over all three years:  100% UP TO a maximum of $ 250,000. 
The effective date of this agreement is from July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014.* 
*Year 3 funding is subject to legislative appropriation in the 2013-2015 Biennium. 

mailto:susan.walker@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:mike.shuttleworth@co.benton.wa.us
mailto:Clynda.Case@ecy.wa.gov


CurrentUser
Text Box
h. Public Hearing Authorization for Zayo Group LLC Franchise



CurrentUser
Text Box
i. Contract Amendment w/Dr. Brooks Watson II MD-MBA













AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:  14 Feb 2012 

Sub:  Red Mtn groundwater 

Memo Date:  06 Feb 2012 

Prepared By:  AJF 

Reviewed By:   

ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract  

Pass Resolution  

Pass Ordinance  

Pass Motion  

None   X 

DISCUSSION TYPE 

Consent Agenda  

Public Hearing  

1st Discussion X 

2nd Discussion  

Other    

 
 
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
 
Tom Tebb, Regional Director for the Washington Department of Ecology’s Office of Columbia River, requested 
the opportunity for his staff to meet with Commissioners to discuss issues and concerns related to 
groundwater quality and quantity on the north side of Red Mountain. 
 
The attached background material provided by Ecology is thorough in its description of the agency’s concerns 
and topics they plan to present.  It looks to be a fairly technical presentation.  I have asked Ecology to keep 
in mind that we are not hydrogeologists. 
 
My understanding of the presentation is that it is for information and conversation only, and that no action is 
requested from Commissioners. 
 

# # # 

CurrentUser
Text Box
North Red Mountain Groundwater Issues – T Tebb


	Web Packet 021412.pdf
	Agenda Minutes 020712
	CA -  Animal a
	CA - Central Services b
	CA - Central Services c
	CA - Fairgrounds d
	2-14-12 Agenda action sheet FG Grant
	FG Grant Resolution.pdf
	2-14-12 FG grant
	2-14-12 FG grant 1

	CA - Fairgrounds e
	CA - GIS f
	CA - Planning g
	Benton Co SMP G1200022 - FINAL.pdf
	Work Program: The Recipient shall perform the following tasks and phases:
	Task A:    Coordination
	Task B: Secure qualified consultant services and Interlocal Agreements
	PHASE 1: Preliminary Assessment of Shoreline Jurisdiction and Public Participation Plan
	Task 1.1:   Identify preliminary shoreline jurisdiction
	Task 1.2:  Prepare plan for public participation
	PHASE 2: Shoreline Inventory, Analysis & Characterization
	Task 2.1: Conduct shoreline inventory
	2.2.1  Characterize ecosystem-wide processes
	2.2.2  Characterize shoreline functions

	2.2.3  Conduct shoreline use analysis

	Task 3.1  Conduct community visioning process
	Conduct a community visioning process that includes as many citizens as possible to determine goals for future use of the shoreline. This process should be conducted with respect to the findings of the shoreline inventory and characterization report. ...

	Task 3.6   Prepare preliminary cumulative impacts analysis
	Task 4.1 Prepare restoration plan
	Task 4.2:  Revisit draft SMP and cumulative impacts analysis; finalize SMP jurisdiction maps
	PHASE 5: Local SMP Adoption Process



	CA - Public Works h
	CA - Sheriff i
	Timed - Red Mt Groundwater



